
 

1 
 

                  City of Bay Village 

 
Council Minutes, Committee Session                                                              April 4, 2016 
Conference Room                           7:40 p.m. 
Dwight Clark, Vice President of Council, Presiding 
 
Present:           Clark, Lieske, Mace, Tadych, Vincent, Acting Mayor Ebert 
 
Excused: Mayor Sutherland, President of Council Koomar, Councilman Tom Henderson 
 
Also Present: Finance Director Mahoney, Recreation Director Dan Enovitch, Director of Public 
Safety/Service Thomas, Police Chief Spaetzel 
                          
AUDIENCE 

 

The following audience members signed in this evening:  Dick Majewski, Lydia DeGeorge, Jeff 
Gallatin, Clair Banasiak, Richard Fink, and Bob Tuneberg. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

There were no announcements this evening. 
 

ENVIRONMENT, SAFETY AND COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 

McKeon Education Group, Inc. Contract 
 
Mr. Vincent referred to Law Director Ebert for a report on the proposal to renew the McKeon 
Education Group, Inc. contract.  Mr. Ebert stated that the contract is the standard renewal 
received annually from McKeon Education Group for the Bay Family Services program and the 
Community Diversion Program.  The Bay Family Services 2016-2017 contract amount is 
$87,344, of which the City of Bay Village would be contractually obligated for 50%, or $43,672.  
This represents a slight increase from the 2015 contract amount of $84,800. 
 
Police Chief Spaetzel advised that Bay Family Services is twenty years old this year.  The Mayor 
and Chief Spaetzel were on the initial team that initiated and established the program.  McKeon 
Education Group is the contractor that provides the Bay Family Services Program, providing an 
outstanding service.  The cost is split with the Bay Schools and an equal amount of work is done 
through the schools and the police department.  The program is receiving many self-referrals, 
with people recognizing and utilizing the service.  It grew out of a need to provide an alternative 
to Juvenile Court, and has become a model for many other cities. 
 

PLANNING, ZONING, PUBLIC BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS COMMITTEE 

 

Mrs. Lieske advised that the Planning, Zoning, Public Buildings and Grounds Committee met 
this evening at 6:30 p.m. to review Codified Ordinance 1351, Determination of Grade Lines.  A 



Committee Meeting of Council 
April 4, 2016 
 

2 

situation with a home being built currently on Humiston Road was discussed at length.  Council 
has viewed this construction, and this evening heard from the residents that live on the street.  A 
proposed ordinance modifying the current ordinance has been created by Law Director Ebert, 
and the proposed ordinance will be reviewed at a Planning, Zoning, Public Buildings and 
Grounds Committee meeting to be held Monday, April 11, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. in the conference 
room of Bay Village City Hall.  Additional items that were on the agenda for this evening’s 
Planning and Zoning meeting will also be reviewed on Monday, April 11, 2016. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that the hope is that whatever loophole that exists now will be eliminated going 
forward in terms of grade and height restrictions.  Mr. Ebert stated that both the preliminary and 
final grade determination will need to be reviewed by an engineer who is familiar with the City.  
 
Mr. Vincent added that the discussion earlier was about having a review at the foundation stage.  
He asked if this will be part of the proposed ordinance.  Mr. Vincent stated that he would like a 
grade determination and inspection in the middle of the construction process.  The problem that 
occurred with the home construction discussed in the Planning and Zoning Committee meeting 
this evening is that it was not discovered until the framing was up. 
 
Mr. Cheatham of SAFEbuilt, Inc. stated that the engineer looks at the preliminary grade.  The 
SAFEbuilt, Inc. inspectors have no idea where the grade is set until the foundation is up and 
done.  The new ordinance will say that someone looks at it when the excavation has occurred, 
but no footings are poured. This would eliminate all these problems.  An engineer, or staff 
member goes out and looks at the depth of the excavation, adds the depth of the footings, and the 
height of the wall to determine if it meets the grade plan.  That has never been done before. 
 
Mr. Clark suggested that it might be prudent to see if there are one or two people on the City 
staff that have the capability of setting grade.  Director of Public Safety/Service Thomas stated 
that the person does not have to be certified, but a recommendation would be made that it needs 
to be rechecked by an engineer.  Mr. Cheatham stated that it is not necessary to be a certified 
engineer or surveyor to set grade.  He noted that when he was building homes he set his own 
grade everywhere he built.  Where you need the engineer is when there is a problem, and there is 
a problem with drainage and they must design the swales. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that the point is that we need to have teeth in the ordinance before it becomes a 
problem.  Mr. Tadych stated that if something should become a legal issue, would our non-
engineer personnel be able to uphold and stand forward with their decision, or should we have an 
engineer.  Mr. Clark suggested having that discussion at the Planning and Zoning Committee 
meeting to be held on April 11, 2016.  Mr. Ebert noted that a staff member used to be the person 
who set grade, and he likes the idea of having someone in-house as always the person to be 
doing that job. 
 
Mr. Vincent asked Mr. Ebert to see what kind of teeth the ordinance could have.  The existing 
ordinance has minor misdemeanor language.  He asked Mr. Ebert to determine what can be 
added to that in the way of a penalty and/or fine.  Mr. Vincent also asked Mr. Ebert to see what 
can be done with the existing construction that is 4 feet above the neighboring homes.  Mr. 
Vincent stated that it is good that we are doing this now.  Unfortunately, it took this experience 



Committee Meeting of Council 
April 4, 2016 
 

3 

with this property, but the review it caused will benefit the residents and it is good we are 
spending time thinking about it.  He noted that he never thought about this being an issue until 
someone brought it forward.  Mr. Vincent complimented Mrs. Lieske on setting the Planning and 
Zoning Committee meeting so quickly last Friday to address this issue.  Mr. Tadych noted that it 
has been an issue in the past.     
 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS, STREETS, SEWERS AND DRAINAGE COMMITTEE 

 

Bid Review – 2016 Pavement Maintenance and Resurfacing Program 
 

Director of Public Safety/Service Thomas reported that six bids were received from six 
different companies for the 2016 Pavement Maintenance and Resurfacing Program.  There was 
one base bid and three alternate bids.  The total of the bids ranged from $759,515 to $875,494.  
Chagrin Valley Paving Co. submitted the lowest and best bid.  Mr. Thomas stated that the City 
has had experience with Chagrin Valley Paving Company for the last several years and are very 
confident that they will do an excellent job with the roadways. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that the bid is $63,000 under the original estimate.  Mr. Thomas stated that the 
City had anticipated $650,000 and Chagrin Valley Paving Company’s bid came in at $586,795. 
It is recommended that Alternate Bid 2 and Alternate Bid 3 be added to the base bid, resulting in 
a total of $670,457.  Alternate Bid 2 is for Lake Park Drive, off of Lake Road, and Alternate Bid 
3 is for the lift station at Huntington Longbeach roadway which is in bad condition.  The base 
bid of $586,795 covers Lincoln Road and Naigle Road from the bridge to the city line. 
 
Mr. Vincent asked if Mr. Thomas has determined if the City can work with Avon Lake to do the 
entire roadway of Naigle Road at one time.  Mr. Thomas stated that he can talk to them but they 
rate their roads and their roadway coming in to the City is in much better condition.  Mr. Vincent 
stated that it would be forward thinking to work with them. 
 
Mr. Clark asked Mr. Thomas to please let Council know if additional work could be done as the 
2016 Pavement Maintenance and Resurfacing Program proceeds and if it stays under budget.  
Mr. Thomas noted that a small addition off of Cliff Drive will be addressed if there are funds left 
inside the base bid.  Mr. Clark noted that the total of $670,457 is $30,000 under what the Council 
approved for 2016.  As a point of reference, Council approved up to $700,000 for street 
resurfacing for the 2016 year.  The ordinance will be presented for adoption on April 11, 2016 to 
include the alternate bids.     
 

FINANCE AND CLAIMS COMMITTEE  
 
SAFEbuilt, Inc. Contract 
 
Mr. Tadych reported that the SAFEbuilt, Inc. contract for building department services is due 
for renewal on June 1, 2016.  It currently has terms whereby revenues are split 85% SAFEbuilt, 
Inc., and 15% City of Bay Village of permit fees.  Mr. Tadych stated that the City has been able 
to move the terms to 80% SAFEbuilt, Inc., and 20% City of Bay Village.  Mr. Cheatham stated 
that the new contract is effective May 1, 2016, but the new revenue sharing arrangement begins 



Committee Meeting of Council 
April 4, 2016 
 

4 

June 1, 2016. Finance Director Mahoney stated that the new terms of the contract will be of 
approximately $15,000 benefit to the City per year.  It was agreed to proceed.   
 
Mr. Tadych thanked Mr. Ebert for the composting facility agreement clarification of the two 
missing exhibits. 
 
RECREATION AND PARKS IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Mr. Mace stated that he hopes to schedule a meeting of the Recreation and Parks Improvement 
Committee when Mr. Henderson, as a member of the Committee, will be back from vacation. 
 

SERVICES, UTILITIES AND EQUIPMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Bid Review – Scareb Composter purchase jointly with the City of Westlake 
 
Mr. Tadych advised that he will introduce an ordinance this evening to pay one-half of the cost 
of the new Scareb Composter being purchased jointly with the City of Westlake.  The Bay 
Village portion is $178,325 of the total $356,650 cost of the Windrow Turner composter. 
 
Mr. Clark expressed kudos to Mr. Ebert and the administration on putting this together.  The 
money for this purchase was borrowed by the City a couple of years ago, but that was 
anticipating an expenditure of $230,000.  With an aggressive bid and return on investment with 
the sale of the existing composter, a reasonable number was reached and afforded the 
opportunity for other projects that might have otherwise been pushed to future years. 
 
Mr. Tadych asked Mrs. Mahoney to explain the issuance of warrants of the City of Bay Village 
as stated in Section 2 of the ordinance.  Mrs. Mahoney stated that warrants are the same as a 
purchase order.  The City of Bay Village will issue a purchase order of $178,325.00 to the 
Ecoverse Industries, Ltd., which represents the City of Bay Village portion of the $356,650.00 
purchase. 
 
Mr. Mace noted that he would like to state for the record that the Windrow Turner Composting 
Machine in this agreement is listed in the 2016 Budget as the Scareb. 
 
Mr. Ebert noted that the joint agreement with the City of Westlake for the composting facility 
has been advantageous to both cities.  
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS 

 

Mr. Bob Tuneberg asked about the Bay Village Library story he is following.  Mr. Tuneberg 
would like a clarification on the City’s relationship with the library, because he is under the 
impression that most people do not understand that it does not fall under the jurisdiction of the 
City, but is part of the Cuyahoga County Library system. 
 
Mr. Ebert stated that President of Council Paul Koomar has attended a public meeting regarding 
this proposal of the Cuyahoga County Library to put the library in the open section of 



Committee Meeting of Council 
April 4, 2016 
 

5 

Metroparks property across the street from the Lake Erie Nature and Science Center.  Mr. Ebert 
commented that he believes it is a good area because of the proximity of BAYarts and the Nature 
Center.  He noted that he has not been party to any of those discussions, other than what would 
happen with the existing library and the Board of Education. 
 
Mr. Tuneberg stated that one of his questions is regarding the legal ownership of the present 
library building.  He asked who owns the building where the library stands today, and the land 
that the building is on.  Mr. Ebert stated that the City of Bay Village owns the land and they own 
the building.  It is a land lease agreement.  Mr. Ebert stated that there is also discussion as to 
whether the library should be in Cahoon Memorial Park.  Mr. Ebert noted that he has been told 
that the Cuyahoga County Library System has the funding for the new library if it goes forward. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what approvals the City of Bay Village must provide if it is built on Metroparks 
land.  Mr. Ebert stated that the City would have no input if it is located in the Metroparks.  Mr. 
Tuneberg stated that he believes there are a large number of residents that think that City Council 
could speak for the library.  They do not realize that it is a branch of the Cuyahoga County 
Library System and if they would move from the Cahoon Road location to the Metroparks it is a 
move that could probably be made without any jurisdiction from the City.  Mr. Tadych stated 
that there may be an issue with the contract for the lease on the property.  Mr. Ebert added that 
there may be that and there was an agreement with the School Board moving over there.  The 
City would get involved in that and what would happen if properties were swapped.  But, as far 
as moving over to the Metroparks, the City has no jurisdiction.  Mr. Ebert stated that he has not 
reviewed the lease for some time. 
 
Mr. Tuneberg noted that the reason he brings it up now is so people are clear that the City 
doesn’t really have a say, other than what they would do with the present building if a new 
library is built in the Metroparks.  Mr. Tuneberg stated that his feeling about it is that even 
though the City might not have any jurisdiction, it is of concern to everyone in the City.   
 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 

There being no further discussion, the meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Dwight Clark, Vice President of Council         Joan Kemper, Clerk of Council 


